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To: Mayor Kudron and the Grand Lake Board of Trustees 

From: John Crone, Town Manager 

Re: Town Water Rights  

Date: December 11, 2023 

 

Background 

 The Town has recently received a request to transfer water rights to a local property for 

irrigation purposes.  The water requested comes from the Cairn’s Pipeline #1 rights. 

 This request gives the Board an opportunity to review some of the memos written by our Town 

Attorney in the past. 

 

 

 

 

















SCOTTY P. KROB
8400 E. Prentice Avenue

Penthouse
Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111

Telephone: (303) 694-0099
FAX: (303) 694-5005

MEMORANDUM

TO: Shane Hale

FROM: Scott Krob PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL

DATE: April 14, 2010

RE: Selling or leasing Grand Lake water rights to Grand County
_______________________________________________________________

this memo is being provided as background for our discussions with the BOT
regarding the possibility of selling or leasing some of Grand Lake’s water rights to Grand
County until such time as the Town needs such rights for future development or expansion.

The Town of Grand Lake has two primary water rights.  The Cairns Pipeline No. 1
right is a 1908 water right in the amount of  3.0 c.f.s., absolute, which can be diverted at the
Town’s diversion point on the Tonahutu or the Town wells, for irrigation, power, and
domestic uses.   This water right is junior to the Shoshone right which is sometimes the
calling right on the Colorado River, but senior to the CBT right.  It is also protected by
Senate Document 80 which enables the Town to divert under this right even when it is not
in priority in exchange for releases from Green Mountain, at least to the extent of historic use
in 1972, if not later. 

The Town’s other water right is the Grand Lake Pipeline right, which is a 1952 water
right in the amount of 6.0 c.f.s., aboslute, which can be diverted at the Town’s diversion
point on the Tonahutu or the Town wells for municipal and domestic uses.  This water right
is junior to the Shoshone and the CBT right, but is also protected by Senate Document 80 and
Green Mountain, thereby allowing out-of-priority releases, at least to the extent of historic
use in 1972, if not later.  Although the last engineering analysis of the Town’s use of these
water rights is rather dated, it appears that the Town currently uses substantially less than half
of the decreed amounts of its water rights.

The fact that both of the Town’s water rights are “absolute” rather than “conditional”
is beneficial to the Town in that it limits challenges to these rights from other water users and
reduces (but does not eliminate) the risk of having the rights listed as abandoned, so long as
they are used within the Town for their decreed purposes.  However, the absolute nature of
the Town’s water rights is also the main obstacle to conveying the water rights to the County
for its use.  If the water rights are conveyed to the County (or any other water user) to be used
for other purposes or at other locations, the County would need to file a change application
with the water court.  Under Colorado water law, only the amount of an absolute water right



that has been historically used can be changed to different use or to a similar use at a
different location.  This process is sometimes referred to as “re-quantification” of the water
right.  Somewhat ironically, while absolute water rights are re-quantified based on historic
use, conditional water rights are re-quantified based on a less stringent standard of
“contemplated draft”, which looks at the amount of water the Town contemplated using
eventually under the water right, rather than the amount it has actually used.  It may be
difficult for the County to show any historic use of the water rights the Town would be
conveying to it and hence, the County might receive little, if any, benefit from an conveyance
of the Town’s water rights.  

In discussing this matter with the County’s water attorney, Dave Taussig, he agrees
generally that an outright conveyance of the Town’s absolute water rights would almost
certainly face re-quantification and therefore be of little benefit to the County.  We did
however discuss some possibilities of leasing the Town’s rights to the County until they are
needed by the Town.  Dave seemed very interested in pursuing this approach.  Perhaps the
best prospect would be for the Town to lease the available portion of its water rights to the
County.  The County, in turn, would lease the rights to a downstream user, preferably a
municipality such as Glenwood Springs or perhaps even Grand Junction.   The County would
then seek to store some of those rights in Granby Reservoir, which has some storage space
available.  The rights would then be released from storage to allow the water to flow
downstream to the leasing municipality.  The County would time those releases to maximize
the benefit to the County’s stream preservation program, primarily during the late summer
and early fall.

Such an approach would involve a change in use and therefore could involve re-
quantification.  The likely objectors in a change case on the Colorado River are primarily the
Northern District, the State, and the federal government.  However, if the change is from one
municipality to another and the net effect is to keep water in the stream it may be a change
that these entities would be willing to not object to.  Dave’s suggestion is that the Town and
the County approach these entities before submitting a change application to negotiate their
willingness not to object to the proposed change. He feels that the current negotiations
between the County and these entities on other related matters may make it possible to
achieve such an agreement.

The course of action Dave and I discussed would be for you and I and a representative
of the BOT to meet with Dave and Lurline Curran and one or more of the County
Commissioners.  Then, if the Town and the County agree, discussions should be undertaken
with the primary potential objectors.  There are certainly risks involved in going down this
path, including but not limited to whether the primary potential objectors will agree not to
object to the proposed change or whether unforseen objectors might enter the case and force
re-quantification.  However, there are also substantial risks of abandonment if the Town
simply does nothing with the currently unused portions of its water rights.

I look forward to discussing these issues with you and the BOT.  If you have any
questions or need anything further in preparation for those discussions, please let me know.
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